
Manors and other Estates 

 
In 1086 there were four estates in Kilham. One comprising 3 carucates and 2 bovates, had been held 

in 1066 by four thegns, but in 1086 it was in the king’s hands. The largest Domesday estate, 

consisting of 30 carucates, was held both before and after the Conquest by a king’s thegn72, Ernuin the 

priest, and it apparently passed to the king soon after the completion of the survey. 

 

These two estates formed the royal manor of Kilham, half of which was granted by the king to the 

archbishop of Rouen in 1154-8. The other half been granted previously to the chapter of Rouen73. In 

1284-5 the Rouen estate comprised 38 carucates and in 1316 the archbishop was returned as lord of 

the township74. 

 

Rouen’s tenure of the manor was interrupted by deprivation on several occasions, usually because of 

the French wars. King John took it into his hands75 and in 1205 Richard de Belhus, the archbishop’s 

tenant, gave two saddled horses to have possession of it76.  

 

About 1321 the manor, which had recently been taken into the king’s hands, was redelivered to the 

archbishop77. In 1324, it was again confiscated and custody was granted to Peter de Galicien78, 

described has its keeper in 132679.  

 

In 1330, the custody of half the manor was granted to Thomas of Garton for as long as it should 

remain in the king’s hands by voidance of the see80. In 1334, the archbishop and chapter of Rouen 

granted the manor to William of Melton, archbishop of York81.  In 1340, had royal licence to enfeoff 

two men who would transfer the manor to William son of Henry of Melton and his wife Joan. William 

son of Henry, who was the archbishop’s heir, completed the transaction in 1341 after the latter’s 

death82. 

 

The manor, which comprised of 249 bovates in 136283, was retained by the Meltons until the early 16th 

century84. In 1511 Sir John Melton settled it on his daughter Dorothy, who later married George 

D’Arcy85, and D’Arcy was lord in 153086. John, Lord D’Arcy died without surviving heirs in 163587 

and the manor passed to his widow; she later married Sir Francis Fane, who was in possession by 

163988. Fane died in 168089 and by 1869 the manor was passed to William Saville, grandson of  John, 

Lord D’Arcy’s sister Anne. Savile’s father, another William, had been granted the reversion of the 

manor by Lord D’Arcy 163390. 

 

On the death of William Savile in 1692, the manor was divided between his daughters Mary, Anne, 

and Dorothy. Mary Savile married William Maude and they had issue, Major, Mary and Rosamond. 

Mary married Darcy Preston, to whom in 1730 Major and Rosamond sold their interest in the manor.  

 

Anne Savile married John Smithson and her third of the manor passed in 1702 to John’s mother 

Eleanor. In 1711 Eleanor devised her estate to her son-in-law William Iveson and in 1730 his 

daughter-in-law Elizabeth sold it to Darcy Preston. Savile’s other daughter Dorothy married John 

Ricard, on whose death in 1724 her third of the manor was divided between their children Elizabeth, 

Arthur, Catherine, and Essex. Elizabeth sold her interest in the manor to Darcy Preston in 1726, 

Catherine in 1738, and Arthur in 1742. Essex married Henry More and after her death he sold his 

interest to Preston in 174791. At inclosure in 1773 Darcy’s son John Preston was awarded 1,175 a92. 

 

In 1792 Preston sold the manor, then comprising 1,231 a. to Sir Christopher Sykes93 and in 1831 Sir 

Mark Sykes sold the estate in separate lots94. The purchaser of the manor and the largest holding, 

about 800 a. was Thomas Duesbery95. In 1877 W. H. T. Duesbery sold 765 a. to W. H. Denison, Lord 

Londesborough96, and the estate was split up and sold by W. F. H. Denison, earl of Londesborough, in 

1906-7. 

 



The 264-acre Grange farm passed to Harry Middlewood, the 264-acre Kilham Field farm to Richard 

Standy, and the 239-acre manor farm to John Johnson97. Johnson died in 192098 and three years later 

the estate was acquired by R. D. Kirk99 who sold it in 1927 to G. H. Thompson1. The Thompsons have 

since retained it. 

 

In 1816 Sir Mark Sykes sold 212 a. in Kilham to J. B. Marche2. By 1872 the holding had passed to 

Thomas Holden, who sold it that year to W. H. Harrison-Broadley3. The 206-acre Westfield farm was 

sold in 1956 by Doris Harrison-Broadley to L. J. Marr4. 

 

In the early 13th century the Thwing family held an estate in Kilham of the archbishop and chapter of 

Rouen. About 1227 Marmaduke of Thwing gave to William the Constable, of Holderness, on his 

marriage with Marmaduke’s daughter Cecily, one bovate in demesne and a mesne lordship in 6 

carucates in Kilham, for which William and Cecily were to render service to Rouen5. Part, at least, of 

the estate descended to Sir John Constable (d1587), who sold property in Kilham to Thomas Dalton in 

15686. The descent of this estate has not been traced further. 

 

 

  



  

 
 

  



  



 

 
 

  



 
  



 
  



 
  



 
  



 


